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HONEYWELL FLOUR MILLS PLC

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021
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2020 %% Increase!

021
000 000

Major profit or loss items
Revenue 109,594,730 80,450,397
Profit before taxation 1,576,746 1,270,237
Profit after taxation 1,125 864 fa0 452
At year end
Major statement of financial position items
Sharcholders’ fund 57,968,678 57,285,793
Total assets 147,394,656 142,261,292
Total liabilities 89425978 84,975,499
Issued and fully paid share capital 3,965,099 3,965,099
Per 50K share dara

Kobo kobo
Earnings 14.20 818
Dividend proposed 7.00 4.00
Dividend paid 4.00 4,00
Net Assets T730.99 722358
Stock Exchange quotation as at 31 March (W) |18 (.98

(decrease)
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HONEYWELL FLOUR MILLS PLC
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors accept responsibility for the annual financial staterments, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the
requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020 and Financial Reporting Council
of Nigeria Act. No. 6, 2011.

The Directors ure of the opinion that the financigl statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the financial affairs of the Company and of the financial performance during the vear.

The Directors further acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of
internal financial controls established by the Company and place considerable importance on
maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Directors to meet these
responsibilities, the board of Directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the
risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of
responsibilitics within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and
adequate segregation of duties to ensure an scceptable level of risk. These controls are
monitored throughout the company and all employees are required to maintain the highest
ethical standards in ensuring the Company’s business is conducted in a manner that in all
reasonable circumstances (s above reproach. The focus of risk management in the Company is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the
company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminsted, the Company endeavours to
minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour
are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Company will not remain
@ going concer for a1 least iwelve months from the date of this financial statements

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors By:

7

Dr. Oba OfudebtBSe Fon) CFR Olanrewaju Bamidele Jaiyeola

Chairman Munaging Director/ CEOQ
FRCZ01MVICANADODODOZI6S FRCZ014TC ANTDOODDOR 54T
15 May, 2021 15 May, 2021
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HONEYWELL FLOUR MILLS PLC
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Honeywell Flour Mills Plc is commitied to the best practices and principles of
Corporite Governance. The Company is a member of the Society for Corporate
Governance of Nigeria, and has successfully completed the Corporate Governance
Rating System assessmenl- & joint inftiative of the Nigerian Stock Exchange and the
Convention on Business Integrity. Its business is conducted in o fair, honest and
transparent manner which conforms to Code of Corporate Governance issued by
Securities and Exchange Commission and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria.

Board Composition

The Board consists of a Non-Executive Chairman, four (4) Non-Executive Directors,
three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Executive Director, all
bringing high level of competence and expertise. They are seasoned professionals and
entrepreneéurs with vast business management experience and credible track records.
The non-executive Directors are independent of the management and are free from
constraints which may materially affect their judgment as Directors of the Company.

Raole of the Board

The Board has the responsibility of ensuring that the Company is properly managed
and achieves its sirategic objectives with the aim of creating sustainable long term
value to the Shareholders,

Records of Directors Attendance at Meetings

Members ol the Board of Directors hold periodic meetings 1o decide policy matiers
with the aim of directing the affairs of the Company review its operations, finances and
formulate growth strategy. Board agenda and reports are provided shead of meetings.

Further to the provisions of Section 267(1) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act
2020, the records of the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings during the year under
review is available at the Company's Corporate Head office for inspection. In
accordance with Corporate Governance principles, detasils of attendance st Board
meetings during the vear are as follows:

8/7/2020 18/9/2020 R/1272020 1632021

Dr. Oba Otudeko D.S¢ (Hon) CFR ves ves ves yes
Mr. Olanrewaju Bamidele Jaiyveola yes yes yies yes
Dr. MNino Albert Orara n Yes ik yes
Mr. Obalemi Owudeko ¥es yes wes yes
Mr. Alan Palmer yes yes ves Vs
Mr. Andrew Smith-Maxwell ves yes ves Vs
Mr. Theophilus Oluranti Sckunbi yes yes ves yes
Mrs, Wonuola Adetavo yes yes ves ves
Dr. Raymond Zoukpo ¥es yes ves yes
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Board Changes
Dr, Nino Albert Orara resigned from the Board on 18 May 2020, but was re-appointed
with effect from 26 June 2020,

In line with the Company's Articles of Associations, the following Directors namely:
Mr. Alan Palmer, Mrs, Wonuola Adetavo and Mr, Oluranti Sokunbi shall retire by
rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
clection.

Commitiees

a) Statutory Audit Committee
In compliance with section 404 (3) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020,
members of the Audit Committee were elected at the Annual General Meesting held
on 30 September, 2020, Members that served on the Committee during the year
comprise:

Mr. Adebayo Adeleke Shareholder
Mr. Emmanuel Cmole Sharcholder
Mrs. Morenike Omilabu Shareholder
Mr. Andrew Smith-Maxwell Director
Mr. Theophilus .0, Sokunbi Director
Mrs. Wonuola Adetayo Director

The Commitiee, in the conduct of its affairs, reviews the Company's overall risk
management and control systems, financial reporting arrangements and standard of
business conduct. Members of the Audit Committee bave direct access 1o the
Internal Audit Department and Independent Auditors. The statutory functions of the
Committee are provided for in section 404(7) of the Companics and Allied Maiters
Act, 2020, The details of the attendance a1 meetings of the Committee during the
wear are as follows;

HMI020 240972020 11272020

Mr Adebayo Adeleke (Chairman) yEs Ve ¥es
Mr. Emmanuel Omole ves yes Ve
Mrs. Morenike Omilabu yes yes ves
Mr. Andrew Smith- Maxwell yes = yes
Mr. Theophilus, O. Sokunbi YEs ves ves
Mrs. Wonuola Adetayo yes yei yes

b} Business Development Committee

The purpose of the Business Development Commitiee is 1o assist the Board in
fulfilling its responsibilities in relution to assessing and managing the Company’s
business development strategies and activities. Details of attendance at the Business
Development Committes meeting during the year are as follows:
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117672020 1592020 26/11/2020 25/0372021

Mr. Alan Palmer (Chairman) Vs ves ves ves
Mr. Olanrewaju Bamidele Jaiyeola yes ves yes ves
Dr. Nino Albert Ozara no no ves VES
Mr. Theophilus Oluranti Sokunbi  ves ves ves yes
Mrs. Wonuola Adetayo Vs ves ves vies

¢) Nominations, Governance & Remuneration Committee
The Nominations Committee is empowered 1o bring 1o the board recommendations
regarding the appointment of anv Executive or Non-Executive Director. The
Committee ensures that a review of Board candidates is undertaken in a disciplined
and ohjective manner.

The members of the Nominations Committee are; Mr. Obafemi Omudeko, Mr
Oluranti Sokunbi, and Dr. Raymond Zoukpo, The committee met on 24"
Seplember 2020. All members were present. Mr.Obafemi Otudeko is the
Chairman.

vi.  Executive Management Commitiee
The Executive Management comprises the Executive [irectors and Head of
Departments of the Core Business Units of the Company. It meets once a week and is
responsible for setting overall Corporate targets, reviewing the Company's
performance and operational issues and overseeing the affairs of the Company on a
day-to-day basis. As at 31 March 2021, the Executive Management comprised the

following members:

Mr. Olanrewnju Bamidele Jaiyeola - Managing Director

Mr. Mobolaji Fakavode - Finance Director

Mr. Ifeanyvichukwu Abadom - Manufacturing Director

Mr. Tayo lori - Director, Supply Chain Operation

Mr. Oluseye Ogunwole - Head. Mational Sales (Business to Business) B2B
Mr. Narendra Nagarkar - Head, Mational Sales {Business to Customers) B2C
Mr. Babatunde Adebayvo - General Manager Operation, Sagamu

Mrs.Bisi Duduyemi - Head, Human Resources

Mrs. Yewande Giwa - Company Secretary

vii.  Performance Evaluation of the Board
The Board has established a system 1o undertake 4 formal and rigorous annual evaluation
of its own performance, that of its Comminees, the Chairman and individual Directors.
The evaluation svsiem mcludes the criteria and key performance indicators and targets for
the Board, its Committees and each individual Commitee member. .
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Policies

In keeping up with its practice of adhering to best Corporate Governance Standards,
Honeywell Flour Mills Ple has put in place several policies which protect the interest
of its customers and stakeholders. These include;

a. Security Trading Policy

In accordance with Section 14 of amended Listing Rules of the Nigerian Stock
Exchange, Honeywell Flour Mills Plc has in place a Security Trading Policy.

During the financial vear under review, the Directors and emplovess of the
Company complied with the Nigerian Stock Exchange Rules relsting 1o securities
transactions and the provision of the Heneywell Flour Mills Ple Policy on insider
trading.

Sharcholders Enquiries and Complaints Management Policy

Honeywell Flour Mills Plc has in place a Complaints Management Policy in
compliance with the Investments and Securities Act (ISA), 2007 and in line with
the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Rules relating to the Complaints
Management Framework of the Nigerian Capital Market.

During the financial year, all enquiries and complaints covered under the Policy
were promptly resolved,

Engquiries and complaints may be submined through the following channels:

L Company Registrar
First Registrars & Investor Services Limited
Plot 2 Abebe Village Road
lganmu,
Lagos.
Tel: 234 1 2799880, 2701078, 2701079
Fax: 234 1 2701071, 2701072

Email: infoi@ firstregistrarnigeria com.

. Company Secretary
Shareholders seeking to escalate unresolved complaints are directed o
contact the Company Secretlary at this location:

Office of the Company Secretary

b, Mekunwen Road.

Tkoyi,

Lagos.

Email: himl@honeywellflour.com

Tel; +234 1731 5870, 4234 1 793 2694
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¢, Whistle Blowing Policy

Linder 1ts whistle blowing mechanism, emplovees of Honeywell Flour Mills Plc
and other stakeholders including third parties are encouraged to report any
observed or suspected acts of fraud, corruption or other frregularities. They may
contact the independent helpline by telephone or enline without fear of reprisal or
recrimination and may do so anonymously if they so wish,

The Company guarantees that the identity of the reporting individual or
organisation shall be accorded utmost protection and the report timely investigated
and treated. Whistle-blowers may report misconduct, irregularities or malpractice
via the following channels:

* whistlebloweri honeywellgroup.com
. OT08 060 1099
. www honeywellgroup.com/whistleblowing

. Quality Policy

The Company is committed to the continuous achievement of business success by
maintaining its quality leadership in the flour milling industry.

This is driven by a quality management system designed 1o ensure that customers
are always provided with high quality products and services that meet International
Smndards, Such standards are in full complisnce with all statutory and regulatory
requirements which are set out in writing for adherence by all staff at all times.

Honeywell Flour Mills Plc was the first flour milling company in Nigeria 1o be
I50-certified. All processes and procedures across the organisation are in line with
international best practice to ensure the continuous production of good guality
products for the complete satisfaction of its highly esteemed customers. The
Company employs state-of-the-ari facilities for the production of its various brands
in conjunction with its techmical panners Buhler AG of Switrerland (the world's
leading milling equipment manufacturer) for the installation and maintenance of
its mills as well as a partnership agreement with Muhlenchemie of Germany for the
supply of additives,

Anti-bribery and Corruption Policy

Honeywell Flour Mills Plc is committed to upholding the highest levels of ethical
stundards and integrity in doing business. Hence, the Company has zero tolerance
for fraud, bribery and corruption of any noture.

The Company acknowledges the importance of faimess in business and Kicks
against all acts which threaten to undermine the integrity of its business operations.
The adverse effects of fraud, bribery and corruption are recognized through its core
vatlues which include ‘imegrity’ - symbolizing our commitment to tenaciously
maintain the highest ethical standards, and 'responsibility beyond ourselves’ which
denotes our intent to act as catalysts for positive change and development in our
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Sociery. This acts as the foundation of our dealings at Honeywell, and will continue
to underpin our business operations,

The Company actively maintains an Anti-Bribery & Corruption Policy 1o retterate
its zero tolerance stance on frawd, bribery and corruption and such other unethical
acts, to provide a framework to promote its stance on these, to promote transparency
in its dealings and to ensure its reputation and stakeholders are adeguately
profecied.

I Dihers

In line with the Code of Corporate Governance, Honevwell Flour Mills Pl also has
in place other policies which Further strengthen its Corporate Governance Structure.
They include:

Conflict of interest & related party transactions policy
Code of Ethics for employees and the Board of Directors
Communications policy

Board appointment policy

Board remuneration policy

Internal Control policy

Robust charers for the Board and Commitiees
Orientation & induction programme for new Directors

Statement on Sustainability

Honevwell Flour Mills Ple is passionate about creating and enabling the growth of
sustainable value for all its stukeholders. The Company constantly assesses how its
operations affect its immediate stakeholders and the broader environment and
implements action plans which promote more sustainable business practices.

Honeywell Flour Mills Plc's sustainability agenda has 2 broad ohjectives - creating a
positive impact as a responsible corporate citizen, while minimizing the adverse effects
of business operations on the environment. This agenda thus encompasses both
Sustainability and Corporate Social responsibility initiatives, and is anchored on 4
pillars known as “HEED™:

Health & Safety
Education

The Environment; and
Drriving economic growth

The Company's sustainability agenda aligns with the United Nations' Sustainable
Development Goals, particularly:

Goal 2: Zero hunger

Goal 3: Good health and well-being

Goal 4: Quality education

Goal 8: Decent work and economic growth
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Honeywell Flour Mills Ple recognizes that strong leadership and governance structures
are critical to the success of its sustainability agenda, and 1o the growth and sustenance
of its business as a whole, The Board of Directors, working with the Managemem
Team, is responsible for promoting adhérence (0 corporate governance principles and
global best practice in business operations, and shall ensure that these busingss
operations are conducted in a manner which aligns with the Company's sustainability
agends.

Statement of Compliance with the Nigerian Code of Corporate Governance
Honeywell Flour Mills Plc affirms that 1o the best of its knowledge, the Company is in
compliance with the Nigerian Code of Corporate Governance. Practical demonstration
of its compliance is shown by the following steps which have been taken:

Part A: Board of Directors & Officers of the Board

#  The Board consists of & non-Executive Chairman, 3 Independent Directors, 4
non-Executive Directors and | Executive Director, supported by a competent
Company Secretary,

# A Board Diversity Policy has been developed 1o ensure that the Board remains
sensitive to the need for diversity in all forms including gender, age and
experience.

* In addition to the statutory Audit Committee, the Board has established a
Mominations, Governance & Remuneration Committee and a Business
Development Committee all of which are governed by robust charters. The
establishment of a Board Audit & Risk Management Committee is also in
view.

- Train'u:lg and induction of Directors 15 governed by the Board's Director of
Development Policy. During the year under review, Board members
participated in an Executive Board Training Programme facilitated by the
Lagos Business School,

o  The Board is guided by its Appointment Policy in making appointments to the
Board, though there were no appointments made during the vear under review.
The policy sets out the criteria for Board appointments, and provides for the
extensive sereening and vetting of potential Directors. Upon appointment, new
Directors are mandated to undergo an induction programme.

# The Board Remuneration Palicy provides a frumework for the remuneration
of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, which enables the Company offer
competitive and fair rates of pay and benefits to attract and retain people of
proven ability, experience and skills whilst ensuring that there is no
discrimination based on gender, race, ethnicity, religion or sexual orientation.

*  Executive Directors’ compensation is pérformance-driven, and
consists of both fixed and variable remuneration components which are
as follows:



Page |12

= Basc salary
- Performance incentive
- Benefits & allowances

= Terminal benefits
#  Non-executive Directors’ compensation consists of Directors fees,
sitting allowances and reimbursable expenses.
Part B: Assurance
A robust Enterprise Risk Management framework is utilized in monitoring
business risks
o A whistle-blowing framework has long been established and is continwously
communicated to stakeholders

Part C: Relationship with Shareholders

A Stakeholder Management, Engagement & Communication Policy has
been developed o enable and encournge stakeholders w0 engage with the
Company.

Part D: Business Conduct with Ethics
Several policies have been developed to demonstrate the Company’s
commitment to ethical business conduct. They include:

®  [Insider Trading policy
o  Conflict of interest & related party transactions policy
#  Anti-bribery & corruption policy

Part E: Sustainabiliry
The Company s sustainability agenda is documented in a Sustainability

policy.

Part F: Transparency
Materinl information is disclosed to stakeholders through the sppropriate
channels.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the financial statements of
Honeywell Flour Mills Ple for the year ended 31 March, 2021,

Imcorporation

Honeyvwell Flour Mills Plc was initially registered as Gateway Honeywell Flour Mills
Limited on 21 June, 1983. A change in the Company’s ownership structure led to a
change of the name to Honeywell Flour Mills Limited in June 1995, The Company was
converied to a Public Liability Company in 2008, Its shares were listed on the Nigerian
Stock Exchange (NSE) in 2009,

Principal Activities

The Company is principally involved in the manufacturing and marketing off wheat
based products such as flour, semolina; whole wheat meal, noodles and pasta.
Result for the Year

The following is the summary of the company s operating results for the

}"Eﬂf:
A
Revenue 109,594,730
Profit before 1axation 1,576,746
Taxation and levy {450,882}
1,125,864

There were no material changes to the nature of the company's business from
the prior year.

Dhividend

The directors have proposed & dividend of 3 555,113,836 which translates 10 7 kobo
per ordinary share of 50 kobo (2020: 8 317,207,906, @4k per share). This is subject to
the approval of the sharcholders at the Annual General Meeting and will be subjected
to the deduction of appropriate withholding tax at the time of payment.

Products Distribution
The Company's products are distributed through many distributors across the Country.

Directors’ Shareholding

The direct and indirect interest of Directors in the lssued Share Capital of the Company
as recorded in the Register of Directors Sharcholdings sndfor as notified by the
Directors for the purposes of Sections 301 and 302 of the Companies and Allied Matters
Act 2020 and the listing requirements of Nigerian Stock Exchange is as stated
hereunder.
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2021 2020 2021 2020

Direct  Direct Indirect Indirect

Dr, Oba Otudeko D.5¢ (Hon) CFR - -5.294,363,565 5,294,363,565

Mr. Olanrewaju Bamidele Jaiveola 370,000 370,000 - -

Mr. Nino Albert Ozarn 250,000 250,000 . =

Mr. Obafemi Otudeko - = 618,000,000  B18,000,000

Mr. Alan Palmer 75,783 75,783 - -

Mr. Andrew Smith-Maxwell . - - =

Mr. Theophilus Oluranti Sokunbi 208,000 208,000 . .

Mrs. Wonuola Adetayvo 50,000 30,000 - -
Dr. Raymond Zoukpo 204,541

1,158,324 953,781 5,912,363.565 5,912,363,565

**Dr. Oba Owdeko and Mr, Obafemi Otudeko have indirect holdings amounting 1o
3,294,363.565 and 618,000,000 respectively through Siloam Global Services Limited
which is a 75% equity holder in the Company.

Directors’ Interest in Contracis

None of the Directors have notified the Company fior the purpose of Section 303 of the
Companies and Allied Maners Act 2020 of any disclosable interest in confracts with
which the Company was involved during the year ended 31 March, 2021,

Emplovment and Emplovecs

i). Employment Policy

It is the policy of the Company that there should be no discrimination in considering
applications for employment including those from physically challenged persons.
However, there was no physically challenged person in the employment of the
Company during the vear.

il). Training and Development

It is the Company's policy 1o equip all employees with the skills and knowledge
required for the successful performance of their jobs. The Company sees the
investment in its emplovees as a major part of its strategic development and have
maintained a consistent policy of training its staff, both locally and internationally to
enhance their skills and competence.

iti). Health and Welfare of Emplovees

It is the policy of Honeywell Flour Mills Plo that every employee is provided with a
safe and healthy working environment so far as is practicable, having due regard to all
moral, legal and economic obligations. The Directors of the Company recognize that
they have a responsibility 1o ensure that all reasonable precautions are taken to maintain
good working conditions that are safe, healthy and comply with all statutory
requirements and best codes of practice. The Company provides Personal Protective
Equipment 1o emplovees as required by the nature of their jobs and safety officers
perform regular monitoring to ensure usage compliance. There are fully equipped
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clinics at its various sites of operation with full-time nurses and weekly attendance by
a physictan. It also offers free medical services through a health management services
provider to all members of staff,

The Company continuously strives 1o improve its operation to ensure a safe working
envirpament, It also maintains high standard of hygiene in all its premises through
sanitation practices and regular fumigation exercises, as well as installation of pest and
rodent control gadgets.

The employee canteens at Apapa, lkeja and Sagamu continue 10 provide nutritionally
balanced healthy meals in a conducive environment, free for the Junior 5taff and at
highly subsidized rate for the Senior Staif.

Emplovees and stakeholders will continue to be encouraged 1o express their views on
the Company's safety standards through the Safety Committee while Health and Safety
training opportunities will be provided annually.

Subject to applicable laws we recruit, hire, train, promote, discipline, and provide other
conditions of employment without regerd to o person's race, colour, religion, sex,
national origin, disability or other classifications protected under law.

Sharcholding Analvsis
The shareholding structure of the Company as at 31 March, 2021 is as stated below:

Share Range No. of Yo of No of Yo of
Holders  Holders Holdings Holdings

1 - 1,000 12,119 36.42 10,330,423 0.13

1,001 - 5000 13,679 41.11 36,095,893 0,46
3,001 - 10,000 2918 8.76 23,989,288 0.30
10,001 = 50,000 2,890 B.64 68,666,470 0.87
50,001 - | 00,000 654 1.97 51,154,899 0.65

[ Ce, 060 ] - 300,000 764 2.30 164,262,877 2.07
500,001 - 1004, 0 16 0.33 85,636,921 |.08
1,000,000 - 5,006,000 106 0.32 223,913,191 2.82
5,000,001 and above 21 008  7.266,147.696 91.62
13273 100 7.930,197,658 100

Substantial Interest in Shares
According 1o the register of members, the following shareholders of the Company held

at least § percent of the lssued Share Capital of the Company as at 31 March, 2021:
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Siloam Global Services Limited
First Bank of Migeria Limited

2020
Moamber
5.912,363,565
400,967,024

Donations, Sponsorship and Corporate Social Responsibility
The value of gifts and donations made by the Company during the vear amounted 1o
W33, 300,175.8B(2020; W9, 531,869.00) and analysed as follows:

FRSC Road Safety Campaign and Other Events
Youth Sport Development

Women Empowerment Programme

Children Sponsorship Events

Cioshen Homes

Peculiar Orphanage Home

Heartbeat Charity Foundation

Byinks Foundation

COVID-19 relief package

Property, Flant and Equipment

Poge |16

Yo
75
5

N
1,420,450
2,111,150

394,000
1,786,057
171,750
269,280
93,000
56,000
—47,007 489
53,309,176

Information relating to the changes in the items of Property, Plant and Equipment is
disclosed in Note 5 page 58. In the opmion of the Directors the market value of the
Company's properties is not lower than the value shown in the financial statements.

Independent Auditors

Messrs. Bakertilly Nigeria (Chartered Accountants), have indicated their willingness
to continue s suditors in accordance with Section 401(2) of the Companies and Allied
Matters Act 2020, A resolution will be proposed 10 authorise the directors to fix their

remuneration,

By Order of the Board

= =

o P s A

Yewande (iwa
FRC2014NBAOOOOMROTE
Company Secretary

25 May, 2021




=
=
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HONEYWELL FLOUR MILLS PLC
ALUDIT COMMITTEE REFORT

In compliance with the provisions of Section 404( 7) of the Companies and Allied Manters Aat
2020, we the members of the Audit Comminge of Honevwell Flour Mills Ple received the
Audited Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021 together with Management
Control Report from the external auditors and management responses thereto ot a duly
convened meeting of the Committee and hereby report as follows:

We confirm that:

{a). We reviewed the scope and planning of the audit requirements;

(b). We reviewed the external suditors’ Management Control Report together with
Management Responses; and

{c). We have ascertained that the accounting and reporting policies of the company for the
vear ended 31 March, 2021 are in accordance with legal requirements and agreed
ethical practices.

In our opinion, the scope and planning of the audit for the vear ended 31 March, 2021 was

adequate and Management Responses to the auditors’ findings were satisfactory.
We confirm that the internal control system was being consistently and effectively monitored

through effective internal Audit.

The External Auditors confirmed that they received full co-operation from the management
during the course of the statutory sudit,

The Committee therefore recommends that the Audited Financial Statements for the vear

ended 31 March, 2021 and the Extemal Auditors' Report thereon be presented for adoption
at the Annual General Meeting.

Dated: 25 May, 2021

Mr Adebavo Ad e
Chairman, Audit Committce
FRC201WNIMAOMOO0002317

Members of the Audit Committee

Mr. Adebayo Adeleke - Shareholder/Chairman
Mr. Emmanuvel Omole - Shareholder

Mrs. Morenike Omilabu - Sharcholder

Mr. Theophilus 0. Sokunbi . Director

Mr. Andrew Smith- Maxwel| - Director

Mrs Wonuola Adetavo - Dvirector
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@ bakertilly
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REPORT OF THE INDEFENDENT AUDITORS

TOTHE MEMBERS OF
HONEYWELL FLOUR MILLS PLC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Honeywell Flour Mills Ple (the company) set
oul on pages 22 to 77, which comprise the statement of financial position as a1 March 31,
2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policles.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects,
of the financinl position of Honeywell Flour Mills Plc as at March 31, 2021, and its
financial performance and cash flows [or the vear then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies and
Allied Matters Act 2020.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the company in accordance with the International Ethics Stundards Board
for Accountanis’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (Parts 1 and 3) (IESBA Code) and other
independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in
Nigeria, We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in
Nigeria. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Kev sudit matiers are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as & whole, and in
forming cur opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.



Key Audit Matter

Borrowings

As al 31 Mareh, 202) the
company’s total bank loans facility
stood at a60.48 billion.

We considered bormowing a key
sudit manter because of Qs
materiality on the company's
Financial position as at 3| March,
2021.

Other Information
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We adopted a substantive test approach to check
the correciness, completeness and the figures of
borrowings included in the financial statements,
Specifically, we:

Obtained and reviewed all existing loan
covenant establishing the facilities;
Reviewed all loans amortisation schedule
fo ensure they arg in agreement with the
respective loun covenants;

Reviewed all correspondences with the
banks o establish eommuniciation arouamnd
loan performances during the year;
Reviewed loan repayment during the year
to confirm that they agree with the loan
covenants and the relevant amortisation
schedule;

Heviewed the appropriateness of the
foreign exchange rate used in converting
the foreign currency denominated facilities;
Obtained an independent  confirmation
from the banks stating the balances and the
status of the facilities at the year-end; and
Reviewed the disclosures on borrowings
for reasonableness.

Our audit est did not reveal any material
misstatement.

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the document titled "Honeywell Flour Mills Plc. financial
statements for the vear ended March 31, 20217, which includes the Directors’ Report and
the Audit Committee’s Report as required by the Companies and Allied Marters Act 2020
and the Detailed Income Statement, which we obtained prior to the date of this report. The
other information does not include the financial statements and our suditor’s report thereon,

Owur opinion on the financial sumements does not cover the other information and we do
not express an sudit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is o read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the sudit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. |f, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are requined to
report that fsct. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Croing Concern

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared using the going concern basis of
accounting. The use of this basis of accounting is appropriate unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aliernative but
to do so.

Management has not identified a material uncertainty that may cast significam doubt on
the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, and sccordingly none is disclosed in the
financial statements. Based on our audit of the financial statements, we also hive not
identified such a material uncertainty.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Sintemenis

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020 and for such intemal control
s the directors determine is necessary 10 enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of sccounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the company or o cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Owr objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
8s 8 whale are free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or error, and o issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is & high level of
assurance, but is not a guaraniee that an audit conducted in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of thege financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with Intermational Standards on Auditing, we exercise
professional judgement and mamtain professional scepticism throughout the audit, We
also:

o [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial stalements,
whether due to freud or emror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obmin audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
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our opinion, The risk of not detecting & material misstaterment resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o (Obtain an understanding of internal controd relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but nol for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

o [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness af

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concemn basis of

accounting and based on the audit evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company s
ability to continue as a going concern. 1f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our suditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion, Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company 10 cease o
continue as & going coneem.

= Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in o manner that achieves foir presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant sudit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also peovide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevamt ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matiers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current vear and are
therefore the key audit maners, We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that o matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with Schedule 5 of the Companies and Allied Maners Act 2020, we
expressly state that:

(i we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
{ii}  inour opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as

It appears from our examination of those books; and
(3)  the Company's statement of financial position and income statement are in
agreement with the books of account and returns.

FROCZ201XTC AN DIHEMMIZTZ4
For: Bahertilly Nigeria
(Chartered Accountants)

Lagos, Nigeria
16 May, 2021
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HONEYWELL FLOUR MILLS PLC
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 VIARCH, 2021
2021 2020
Assois Mole(s) A 000 " [l
Now=Chirrent Axsety
Property, plant and equipmen 5 101,321,149 105,326,911
Imtangible nssets f | 36,810 43017
101,457,979 105 369,928
Current Asyers
Inveniories T 19,780,168 17,525,838
Trade and other receivables 8 3,245,255 5 008,244
Prepayvments 9 2655860 2044 827
Cash and cash equivilents 10 20255193 12312.405
45,936,477 M K91, 364
Total Assets 147,394,656 142,261,292
Equity and Liabilities
Liabilithes
Now-Curremt Liabilifies
Borrowings I 22,544,629 26,770,433
Deferred tax 12 4,940,786 4690018
17485415 31,461,351
Curreni Liabilities
Borrowings I 37,940,164 31,523,541
Trade and other payables 13 21, 709,44 | 21,487,123
Current 1ax payahle 14 200958 - B
61,940,563 53, 639,919
Total Liabilitics B 425,978 85,101,270
Equity
Share capital ] 3,965,000 3965090
Share premium 154 B 462041 B,462,041
Reserves 32115598 32905177
Retained eamings 15425947 [3.E27.705
ET.968.6TH £7.160,022
Total Equity gnd Liabilitie: 147,394,656 142,261,292

afy on 25 My, Emwfh

WMabsulaji Fakayoile
Fimamce [Hreciar
FROZ01 0N AHNN 0] 6847

FROZ@T4TCA S 42

The acchuntag pobtogs &l the asies on pages 28 5 70 fomm an sisngied pert of these Enancy sinlemenis



HONEYWELL FLOUR MILLS PLC

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021

Mote(s)
Revenue £.]
Cost of sales 17
Gross profi
Other operating income |8
Selling and distribution expenses 20
General and administrative expenses 0
Operating profit |9
Finance costs 21
Profit before taxation
Taxation 14.1
Police Trust Fund Levy
Profit for the vear after taxation

Other comprehensive income:
Total comprehensive income for the vear

2021
E A LG
105,594,730

(83,973,450

15,621,274

140,712
(5,543,372)

(2.372.565)

7,646,049
(6.069.303)
1,576,746
(450,826)
__ (56)
1,125,864

s

1,125,864
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2020

a&"000
B0,450,397
(06, 388359
13,861,838

116,209
(6,035,551)

(2.444.863)

5,497,633
(4,227 596]
1,270,237
(619,712)

___ (Y
650,492

===,

650,492

The acoountng pohoes and ithe noves on pages 2640 TO form an imegeal pan of these finaponl smements
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HONEYWELL FLOUR MILLS PLC

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021

Cush flows from operating activities

Profit before taxatiom

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation
Inventories write down

Movement in expected credit loss
Profit on assets disposal

Finance costs

Palice Trust Fund Development levy

Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities

Changes in working capital:
[nventories

Trade and other receivables
Prepayments

Trade and other pavables

Cash generated from operations
Under provision for tax in prior year
Tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash fMlows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of other intangible assets

Net cash from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Finance costs

Dividend paid

Increase in borrowings

Net cash from financing activities

Total cash movement for the vear
Cash at the beginning of the year
Total cash at end of the vear

Note(s)

24
-
8

18

21

-

22

Lik w0 S =]

4.2

11

10

2011
LU
1,576,746

4,663,976
42,012
(24,587)
(10,268)
6,069,303
(56)

=

(2,296,293)
1,787,576
(611,033)
2312318

13,509,694

629.255)
12,880,439

(641,523)

11,845
(112,081}
(741,759)

(6,069.303)
(317,208)
3.147.805

e

(1,238,706)

L ]

10,899,974
0.355419
20,255,393

Puge |25

2020
X000
1,270,237

3,884,048

4227396
{(33)
(234271)

(3,422,603)
(1,025,561
19,850
043 321
5,762,382

(345,084}
5,417,298

(2,574,004)

(21.243)
(2,595,247)

(4,227,396)

2,910,054
(1,317,342)

1,204,709
1850710
2.355419

Ihe aecounting policies and the notes on pages 26 1o T form an integral part of these financial stutements
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HONEYWELL FLOUR MILLS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021

Corporate Information

Honeywell Flour Mills Ple was initially registered as Gateway Honeywell Flowr Mills
Limited on 21 June, 1983, A change in the company's ownership structure led to a change
of the name to Honeywell Flour Mills Limited in June, 1995, The Company was converted
to a Public Liability Company in 2008. Tts shares were listed on the Nigerian Stock
Exchange (NSE) in 2009. As part of its vertical integration strategy, the Company acquired
100% ownership of Honeyvwell Superfine Foods Limited, manufacturer of pasta and
noodles in 2008,

Honeywell Flour Mills Ple is a company domiciled in Nigeria. The Company is principally
engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of wheat-based products including Flour,
Semolina, Whole Wheat Meal, Noodles and Pasta,

Bagzis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with,
and in compliance with, Intemational Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS™) and
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitiee ("IFRIC") interpretations
issued anc effective at the time of preparing these financial statements and the Companies
Act 71 of 2008, and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Maners Act 2020
and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No. 6, 2011,

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost convention, unless
otherwise stated in the accounting policies which follow and incorporate the principal
accounting pelicies set out below.

Functional and Presentation Currency
They are presented in Naira, which is the company's functional currency.

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the IFRS requires
management 0 make judgments, estimates and assumption that affect the application of
secounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed in an on-going basis, Revision to
accounting estimates is recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any
future years affected.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significan: effect on the amounis recognized in the financial statements is included in the
following notes: -

- measurement of defined benefit obligations;

- provisions and contingencies; and

-  measurement of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowances for the trade and other
receivables and key assumptions in determining the weighted-average loss rate.

Refer to note 30 for details of use of estimates and judgments

Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are sel out below,

Going Concern

The Directors have reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources o
continue in operational existence for the unforeseeable future. The Company continues to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements

Segmental Reporting

Operating segments are reported in & manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
o the chief operating-decision maker, The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources, making strategic decisions and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors.

The Company's business operating segments are identified by three factories located a
Apapa, [keja and Sagamu.

The basis of segmental reporting is disclosed in the note 16,
Business Combination

Business combination involving entities under common control are outside the scope of
IFRS 3. Management exercises its judgment 1o apply the pooling of interest method of
accounting for business combination in accordance with IAS 8, 10-12. The [AS 8 and 12
allow management 10 consider the most relevant conceptual framework in developing an
accounting policy where [FRS has no specific requirements.
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Under a pooling of interests-type method, the acquirer accoums for the combination as
follows:

- The assets and liabilities of the acquirer are recorded at book value not fair value
(although adjustments should be recorded to achieve uniform accounting policies);

- No goodwill is recorded. The difference between the acguirer's cost of investment and
the scquiree's equity is presented separately within Other Statements of Comprehensive
Income; no goodwill is recorded. The difference between the acquirer's cost of
investment and the acquiree’s equity is presented separately within Other Statements of
Comprehensive Income;

- Comparative amounts are restated as if the combination had taken place at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Naira using the exchange rates prevailing
al the dates of the transactions or valuations where ilems are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognized in the income stalement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifving cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
are presented in the income statement within ‘finance income or cost', All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement within ‘other gains /
{losses) - net',

Changes in Significant Accounting Policies

There are no new or amended applicable standards that became effective or adopted by the
company during the year, hence, there are no changes in the accounting policies applied
during the vear.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the company holds for its own use
or for rental to others and which are expected to be used for more than one vear.

An jtem of property, plant and eguipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company, and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably.
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Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. Cost includes all of the
expenditure which is directly attributable 1o the acquisition or construction of the asset,
including the capitalisation of borrowing costs on qualifving assets and adjustments in
respect of hedge accounting, where appropriate.

Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions to or replacements of parts
of property, plant and equipment are capitalised if it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company and the cost can be
measured reliably. Day to day servicing costs are included in profit or loss in the year in
which thev are incurred.

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one
year are included in property. plant and equipment,

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any sccumulated impairment losses, except for land and
buildings which are stated at revalued amounts. The revalued amount is the fair value at
the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses,

Property, plant and equipment is subsequently stated at revalued amount, being the fair
value ot the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent sccumulated impairment losses.

Revaluations are made within 3 1o 5 years such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting

vear,

The fair value represents the price which an interested party in a property or an item of
plant and machinery might reasonably be expected to realize in a sale by private treaty
assuming the following:

- awilling buyer;

- @& reasonable period within which to negotiate the sale taking into consideration the
nature of the assets and the state of the market;

= values will remain static throughout the period; - the assets will be freely exposed w0
the market;

- noaccount is to bé wmken of an additional bid by a special purchaser; and

- noaccount is to be taken of expenses of realization which may arise in the event of a
dispasal.

Any increase in an asset's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in

other comprehensive income and accumulated in the revaluation reserve in equity. The

increase is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease

of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss.
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Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in
profit or loss in the current year. The decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income
to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation reserve in respect of that asset
The decrease recognised in other comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated
in the revaluation reserve in equity.

Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by
management. Depreciation is charged to write off the assel's carrving amount over its
estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a method that best reflects the
pattern i which the asset's economic benefits are consumed by the company. Leased assets
are depreciated in a consistent manner over the shorter of their expected useful lives and
the lease term. Depreciation is not charged on an asset if its estimated residual value
exceeds or is equal o its carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset ceases ai the earlier of
the date that the asset is classified as held for sale or de-recognised.

The usetul lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Depreciation Average
Item Method useful life
Buildings Straight line 20— 60 years
Office Fumiture and Equipment Straight line 2= 10 years
Plant and Machinery Straight line 2-25 years
Motor vehicles Straight line 4 years
Land Not Depreciated

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the
end of each reporting vear. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change
is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with & cost that is significant in
relation to the 1otal cost of the item is depreciated separmiely.

The depreciation charge for each vear is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in
the carrying amount of another asset,

Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator
that they may be impaired. When the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment is assessed 1o be higher than the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying amount in line with
the recovernhle amount.

An item of property, plant and ¢quipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from i1s continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
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from the de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment. determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carmrying amount of the item,
is included in profit or loss when the item is de-recognised.

Intangible Assets

Computer Software

Acquired computer sofiware licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred (o
sequire and bring to use the specific software, These costs are amortized over their
estimated useful lives, Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes
are recognized as expenses incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the
design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company
are recognized as intangible assets when the following criteria are met;

- It is technically feasible 10 complete the software product and use or sell it;

- Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell i

- There is an ability to use or sell the software product;

= It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future
economic benefits;

= Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and use
or sefl the software product are available; and

- The expenditure attributable 10 the software product during its development can be
reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of the software product include the
software development, emplayee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
Other development expenditure that do not meet these criteria are recognized as expenses
as incurred. Development costs previously recognized as expense are not recognized as
assel in subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognized as assets are amormzed over their
estimated useful lives.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are amortized on o straight-line basis in the income statement over their
estimated useful lives, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful
life of computer software is between 2 to 10 vears. Amortization methods, useful lives and

residual values are reviewed at cach reporting date and adjusted for where appropriate.

Impairment tesis are performed on intangible assets when there is an indicator that they
may be impaired. When the carrying amount of an item of intangible assets is assessed to
be higher than the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying amount in line with the recoverable
amount.
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An item of intangible assets 15 de-recogmised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits ere expected from its continued use,

Financial Instruments

Hecognition and Initial Measurement

The Company initially recognizes trade and other receivables on the date that they are
originated, All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized on the
trade date at which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset {(unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component)
or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus; for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement
Financial assets — Policy applicable from | Apnl 2019,

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:

= Amonized cost; fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
- Debt investment; FVOCI

- Equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all
affected financial assets mre reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in the business model,

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

- 1t is held within & business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and,

- its contmctual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and

is not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
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All financial assets not classified as measured ot amortized cost or FVOC! as described
above are measured at FVTPL.

Business Model Assessment:

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a
financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is
managed and information is provided to management. The information considered
includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management's strategy focuses on eaming comtractual
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of
the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows
or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

= how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated e.g. whether compensation is based on
the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected: and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods. the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity,

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for de-
recognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's
continuing recognition of the assets.

Assessments whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest:

For the purposes of this assessment, "principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial
assel on initial recognition. ‘Interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of
money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrumenl This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
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= terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features; -
prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company's claim 10 cash flows from specialized assets (e.g. non—
recourse features),

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payvments of principal and interest
criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional
compensation for carly termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset
scquired at a discount or premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that permits or
reguires prepayvment at an amount that substantially represents the contraciual par amount
plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interesi (which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if
the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses:

A prepayment feature 18 consistent with the “solely payments of principal and interest
criterion” if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for o financial asse
acquired s & discount or premium to its coniraciual amount, a feature thal permits or
requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual amount plus
scerued (but unpaid) contractual inmerest (which may also include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this eniterion if the fair
value of the prepavment feature 15 insignificant at initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses:

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss,

Financial assets at amortised cost  These assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the cost-effective imerest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses,
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on de-recognition is recognised in profit
or loss,

Debi investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value,
Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCL On de-
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recognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment, Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCl and are never
reclassified to profit or loss,

Financial Liabilities
Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FYTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a denvative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition, Financial liabifities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in
profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities a1 FVTPL are measured
a1 fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in
profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in profit
or loss,

De-recognition

Financial Assets

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the nghts to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
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financial nsset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset,

Financial Liabilities

The Company de-recognizes a financial liability when its comtractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also de-recognizes a financial lability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified Lability sre substantially
different, in which case a new financial lisbility based on the modified terms is recognized
at fair value. On de-recognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrving
amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceahle right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or
to realize the psset and settle the liability simultaneously. Financial instruments held by the
company are classified in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. The
collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. A provision for
impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due, according to the original terms of the
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows. The amount of the provision
is recognized in the income statement.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables are obligations 1o pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers, Accounts pavable are classified as current
liabilities if payments are due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities. Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently
measured al amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafis include cash at bank and in hand plus short-
term deposits less overdrafts, Short-term deposits have & maturity of less than three months
from the date of acquisition. Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Company's cash management.

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at carrying amount which is deemed 1o be fair value.
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Borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded ar the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs. Finance charges, including premiums payable on setilement or
redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis through the
income statement using the ¢ffective interest method and are added to the carrying amount
of the instrument to the extent they are not settled in the period in which they anse,

Research and Development

Research and development expenditure is charged against profits in the year in which it is
ingurred, unless it meets the criteria for capitalization set out in [AS 38 'Intangible assets'.

Tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax expense and deferred tax expense.
Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in income statement except to the extent that it
relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income,

Current Tax Expense

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year, using tax rates statutorily enacted ar the reporting date, and any adjustment o 1ax
payable in respect of previous years. The Company is subject 1o the following types of
current income tax:

- Companies Income tax - This relates 1o tax on revenue and profit generated by the
company during the vear, 1o be taxed under the Companies Income Tax Act 2020 as
amended 1o date;

- Tertiary Education tax - Tertiary education tax 15 based on assessable income of the
Company and is governed by the Tertiary Education Trust Fund (Establishment, etc.)
Act, 2011,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tix is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for:

Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporiing period, to recover or
settle the carrving amounts of its assets and labilities, For investment property that is
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measured at fair value, the presumption that the carrying amount of the investment property
will be recovered through sale has not been rebutted.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively ¢nacted at the

reporting date,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right 1o offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority
on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax
linhilities and assets on a net basis or their 1ax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously,

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credins and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized, Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefits will be realized.

Tax Exposure

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Company takes into account the
impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due.
This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgments
about future events. New information may become available that causes the Company to
change its judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax
liabilities will impact tax expenses in the period that such determination is made.

Leases

The company assesses whether a contruct is, or contains a lease, at the inception of the
contract,

A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

In order to assess whether a contract is, or contains a lease, management determine whether
the asset under consideration is “identified”, which means that the asset is either explicitly
or implicitly specified in the coniract and that the supplier does not have a substantial right
of substitution throughout the period of use. Once management has concluded that the
contract deals with an identified asset, the right 10 control the use thereof 15 considered. To
this end, control over the use of an identified asset only exists when the company has the
right to substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset as well as the
right to direct the use of the asset.
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In circumstances where the determination of whether the contract is or contains a lease
requires significant judgement, the relevant disclosures are provided in the significant
Judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty section of these accounting policies,

Company as Lessor
Leases for which the company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases. Lease classification is made at inception and is only reassessed if there is
a lease modification.

The various lease and non-lease components of contracts containing leases are accounted
tor separately, with consideration being allocated by applying IFRS 15

Inventories

Inventories are stated st the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. Costs
comprise direct material costs and where applicable, direct labour costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the First in First out (FIFO) method, Net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs 10 be
mcurred in marketing, selling and distribution, Goods i transit are stated at purchase cost
incurred to date.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs, The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, are recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.

Strategic Spare Parts and Servicing Equipment

Strategic spare parts and servicing equipment are usually carried as inventory and
recogmized in profit or loss using the weighted sverage cost method as consumed.
However, major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify as property, plant and
equipment when the Company expects to use them during more than one penod. Similarly,
if the spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in connection with an item of
property, plant and equipment, they are sccounted for as property, plant and equipment.
Such classified spares are depreciated as property, plant and equipment over the useful life
on a straight-line basis,
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Impairment of Assets

The company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the company also:

- Tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not vet available
for use for impairment annually by comparing its carrving amount with its recoverable
amount. This impairment test i1s performed during the annual period and at the same
time every penod.

- Test goodwill acquired in a business combination for impairment annually.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated
for the individual asset. If it is not possible 10 estimate the recoverable amount of the
individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs 1s determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use,

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss,

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or
amortisation is recognised immedintely in profit or loss, Any impairment loss of o revalued
assel is treated as a revaluation decrease.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment
loss recogmised in prior periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are
estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable 1o a reversal of
an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or
amortisation other than goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal
of an impairment loss of a re-valued asset is treated as a revaluation increase,

Share Capital and Equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of 1ts liabilities.
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Ordinary shares are recognised at par value and classified as 'share capital’ in equity, Any
amount received from the issue of shares in excess of par value is classified as 'share
premium’ in equity. Dividends are recognised as a liability to the company in the financial
statements in the period in which they are declared.

Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company operates a defined contribution plan which is funded by contributions from
the Company and the employees. The Company's contribution is recognized as employee
benefit expenses and charged to the income statement The contributions of both the
company and the employees are paid on a monthly basis to a Pension Fund Administrator.
The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the
Pension Fund Administrator does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expenses when they are due.

Short-term Benefit
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed s the related service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus
or profit-sharing plan if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past services provided by the employee, and the obligation can
be estimated reliably,

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
a5 a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Company will be required 1o settle that
obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated, Provisions for restructuring costs
are recognized when the Company has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring that has

been communicated to affected parties. Provisions are not recognized for future operating
losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected 10 be acquired to
seitle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue compnses the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the Company's activities, Revenue is shown
net of value-added tax, retumns, rebates and discounts.
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The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured,
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific eriteria have
been met for each of the Company's activities as described below:

Sale of Goods

The Company manufactures and sells a range of products to the distributors and dealers.
Sale of goods are recognized when the Company has delivered products 1o the customers
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’ acceptance of the
products. Delivery does not oceur until the products have been shipped 1o the specified
locations; the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customers and
cither the customers have accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, or
the Company has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

The products are often sold with discounts and rebates, Sales are recorded based on the
price specified on the sales invoice net of the discounts, rebates and retumns at the time of
sile.

Sales are also recognized when the customer self-collect the product directly at the
Company's premises during which the risks and rewards of ownership passes to the
customer at the point of loading after the customer’s delivery truck leaves the Company’s

Premises,

No element of financing is deemed present where sales are made on agreed credit terms
which are consistent with the market practice.

Interest Income

Interest income s recognized using the effective interest rate method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the investment, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income, [nterest
income on impaired loan and receivables are recognized using the original effective interest
rate,

Dividend Distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's sharcholders is recognized as a liability in the
Company's finuncial stutements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company's shareholders. Dividends are recognized once paid.
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Earnings per Share

The Company presents camings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the number of ordinary shares held at the vear end.

Cost of Sales

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories 1o net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories, arising from &n increase in net realisable value, is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.

Risk Management

Risk management is inherent in the business operations of the Company. Management has
scl up processes and systems o identify, assess, monitor and control business risks
including the following: -

Credit Risk

This refers to the risk that a trade debtor will default by failing 10 make payments in
secordance with the agreed credit terms and conditions. The possible impact of the credi
risk is poor Account Receivable assets quality arising from high level of bad and doubtful
debts and possible impairment of shareholders' funds. The carrving amount of financial
assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Mitigating Measure

= Credit application follows rigorous and extensive credit review and approval processes,

- All credits are secured by insurance or bank bonds,

- Onee conditions precedent to credit utilization are met by the customer, the approved
eredit is updated, monitored and controlled by the ERP on real time basis in
accordance with credit terms,

= Credit utilization reports are prepared and monitored on a daily basis.

Liquidity Risk
This refers to the risk of Company’s inability to finance its operation and meet its obligation

when they become due without incurring unacceptable losses. Liquidity risk includes the
inability to manage unplanned decreases or changes in funding sources.
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Mitigating Measures

Efficient and effective working capital management. - Efficient Naira facility
management.

Efficient funds management to eliminate idle funds, meet obligations as they fall due
and reduce interest expenses to the minimum level.

Liquidity and working capital management reports are prepared and monitored on daily
basis.

The Treasury Depariment is well structured and equipped under the management of a
very experienced and well-trained team,

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of financial loss due 10 the change in value of the market risk
factors. The Company is faced with the following market nsk faciors:

Interest rate risk: - The risk that interest rate will change adversely at the money market.
Foreign exchange risk: - The risk that foreign exchange rates will fluctuate unfavorably
at the foreign exchange market,

Commaodity risk: - The risk that wheat prices will significantly increase at the
mtemational commodity markets.

Mitigating Measures

(d}

Efficient management of exchange and interest rate risks including generation of
relevant risk management reports for the monitoring and review on a daily and weekly
basis.

Monitor the money, capital and foreign exchange markets including micro and
macrogconomic environment on a daily basis.

Efficient management of the commaodity risk by the Logistics and Supplies Depariment
with a full-fledged experienced and well-trained téam in the area of wheat dynamics
and procurement strategies,

Monitoring of price dynamics and changes at the relevant Commaodity Exchange
Boards on a real time basis and take proactive decisions on a timely basis.

The commodity risk affects the global milling industry as the wheat prices are
determined at the international commodity markets. We usually increase product price
in response 1o global volatility in wheat prices in order 1o recover some portion of the
rise in wheat price.

Operational Risk

This relates 1o the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
controls, procedures, people, and systems. Operational risk is inherent in the business
activities. These include risk of inadequate haulage partners required to achieve the




Page |45

company's objectives in terms of sales volume and profit; risk of wastages, downtime and
other associated losses arising from inefficient plant operations; risk of breakdown of ERP
and IT infrastructure or outright loss of critical operational/business data and information;
risk of loss of company assets due to unexpected disaster which may affect business
operations; risk of breakdown of intermal control systems and misstatement of financial
statemenis.

Mitigating Measures

Efficient and effective maintenance culture to prevent down time and inefficient
production operations. - Control activities are an integral part of the Company’s day to
day operations and are defined at every business area.

Existence of robust ERP and comprehensive computenization of internal business
processes, systems and procedures,

Existence of robust IT business continuity and disaster recovery programmes.

All insurable business risks are assessed, identified and adeguately covered insured.
All key positions have a minimum of one under-study who can assume the roles
immediately with minimum support, and eventually grow into the position.
Continuous recruitment of qualified haulage contractors to meet corporate requirements
and prevent shonage of delivery trucks. The Company also acquired and managed some
of 1ts delivery trucks ¢.g. bulk flour leading trucks.

It has a strong, active and experienced Internal Audit Team. Internal Audit Reports
highlighung control weaknesses periodically to the Management and Board Audit
Committee.

The Company's internal control and risk management systems ensure that materal
errors Or nconsistencies in the financial statements are dentified and comected.
Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with accounting standards and
policies.

Financial statements are prepared periodically on monthly and quarterly bases for the
review of the Management and Board. Performance are monitored and compared with
budgets.
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Standards and Interpretations issued’amended but not vet effective

Amendment to IFRS 16,
‘Leases’ = COVID-19
related rent concessions

Publlshed

Effective dare
Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2

Published

Effective dore
Amendments to [AS 1,
Presentation of financial
statements’ on
classification of linbilities

Published
Effective dare

A number of narrow-
scope amendments to
IFRS 3, IAS 16, IAS 17
and some annual
improvements on IFRS 1,
IFRS 9, IAS 41 and IFRS
16

As a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, rent
concessions have been granted to lessees. Such concessions
might take a variety of forms, including payment holidays and
deferral of lease payments. On 28 May 2020, the [ASB
published an amendment to [FRS 16 that provides an optional
practical expedient for lessees from assessing whether a rent
concession telated o COVID-19 is a lease modification.
Lessees can elect to account for such rent concessions in the
same way as they would if they were not lease modifications.
In many cases, this will result in accounting for the concession
as variable lease payments in the period(s) in which the event
or condition that triggers the reduced payment occurs.

May 2020

Annual periods beginning on or afier | June 2020.

The Phase 2 amendments address issues that arise from the
implementation of the reforms, including the replacement of
one benchmark with an alternative one,

This amendment, also, does not have any effect on the
financial statements of the Company.

August 2020

Annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021

These narrow-scope amendments 1o 1AS |, *Presentation of
financal statements’, clanfy that liabilines are classified
as either current or non-current, depending on the rights that
exist at theend of thereporting period. Classification
is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events
after the reporting date (for example, the receipt of a waiver or
a breach of covenant). The amendment also clarifies what |AS
| means when il refers to the *settlememt” of a liability.
January 2020

Annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022.

Amendments to IFRS 3, Business combinations’ update a
reference in IFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting without changing the accounting
requirements for business combinations.

Amendments tw  IAS 16, 'Propertv, plant and
equipment’ prohibit a company from deducting from the cost
of property, plaml and equipmemt amounts received from
selling 1tems produced while the company 15 prepanng the
asset for its intended use. Instead, a company will recognise
such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss.
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contracts’

Published
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Amendments to LAS 37, 'Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets' specify which costs a company includes
when assessing whether a contract will be loss-making.
Annual improvements make minor amendments 1o [FRS 1,
'First-time Adoption of IFRS', IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’,
IAS 41, ‘Agriculture’ and the [llustrative Examples
accompanving [FRS 16, ' Leases'.

The Company is not early adopting these amendments and this
amendment does not have any effect on the financial
statements of the Company in 2020,

May 2020

Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

This standard replaces IFRS 4, which currently permits a wide
variety of practices in accounting for insurance conftracts.
IFRS 17 will fundamentally change the accounting by all
entities that issue insurance contracts and investment contracts
with discretionary participation features.

This amendment does not have any effect on the financial
statements of the Company,

May 2017
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Intangible Assets
2021
Cist Agcum'd  Carrying Cst
Valuation Amortisstion Value
000 LRl B 000 " 0040

Compuier software 220,596 (B3, 766) 136,830 101,988
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oo

Accum'd Carrylsg
Valaation Amprtkation Valkue

000 N0
(585710 43017

Reconciliation of Intangible Assets:

Amortisation  Total
BOO00 N0
(24.795) 136,810

(14.527) 43.017

I TS

2020
A0
4627292
66,6235
771,904
1,727, 895
10,439,276
17,652,992
{127.104)
17,525,888

1,308,536
(493.43)

813,102
4,006,474

— 188,667
5,008,244

5008244

Opening  Reclassi
Balance  fication Additions
000 N000  A'OOOD
Computer software -2021 43,017 6,527 112,081
Computer software -2020 36,301 - 21,243
2021
Inventories e (040
Raw and packaging materials 6,568,926
Working in progress 237372
Finished goods 1,577,845
Consumables and Maintenance spares 1,886,867
Goods in transit 9678373
19,949,285
Inventories (write-down) * (169,116
19,780,169
* The amount of write down of inventories is recognised as an expense in cost of sale
Trade and Other Receivables
Firancial fnstrisment:
Trade receivables 806,171
Loss allowance (470.846)
Trade receivables at amortised cost 335,315
Trade receivables - related parties * 2,786,530
Other receivables ** _ 123 380
Total trade and other receivables 3,245,255
Split between non-current and current portions
Mon-current assets -
Current assets 3245255
3,245,255

5008244

* Trade receivables- related parties represent balinces due from Uraga Power Solutions

Limited as at 31 March, 2021.
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2 (ther receivables represent receivables due from customers on services rendered
which are outside the primary activities of the Company.

Financial instruments and onon-financial instruments components of (rade and
other receivables

Al amortised cost 3,245,255 3,008,244

Exposure to Credit Risk
Trade receivables inherently expose the company to credit risk, being the risk that the
company will incur financial loss if customers fail to make payments as they fall due.

The maximum exposure (o credit risk af the reporting date is the carrying value of the
receivables. The Company holds insurance/bank bonds &s security against default. The
Company's Credit Sales Insurance covered a total credit customer amounting to N4GE,
768,308 (2020: N461, (21,630) as at 31 March, 2021,

A total number of 28 Credit customers were insured agninst default as at 31 March,
2021 (2020: 35 Credit Customers).

In order o mitigate the risk of financial loss from defaults, the company only deals
with reputable customers with consistent payment histories. Sufficient collateral or
guarantees are elso obtained when appropriate. Each customer is analysed individually
for creditworthiness before terms and conditions are offered. Statistical credit scoring
models are used 10 analyse customers. These models make use of information
submitted by the customers as well as external bureau data (where available). Customer
credit limits are in place and are reviewed and approved by credit management
committees, The exposure to credit nsk and the creditworthiness of customers is
contintously monitored.

Trade receivables arise from both wholesale and retail sales. The customer base for
retail trade is large and widespread, with a result that there is no specific significant
concentration of credit risk from these trade receivables, Wholesale trade, while also
large and widespread is geographically spread within the country. Management
therefore assesses and monitors credit risk internally along these risk concentrations
(Retail, wholesale country wide).

As ot 31 March, 2021, rade receivables of W330 million (2020: %802 billion) were
neither past due nor impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. Analyses of customer credit risk were
performed on the customers.

The average credit period on trade receivables is 15 days (2020: 15 days) No interest
is charged on outstanding trade receivables.

A loss allowance is recognised for all trude receivables, in accordance with IFRS @
Financial Instruments, and is monitored at the end of each reporting peried. In addition
1o the loss allowance, trade receivables gre written off when there is no reasonabie
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expectation of recovery, for example, when a debtor has been placed under liquidation.
Trade receivables which have been written off are not subject 1o enforcement activities.

The company measures the loss allowance for wrade receivables by applying the
simplified approach which is prescribed by IFRS 9. In accordance with this approach,
the loss allowance on trade recelvables is determined as the lifetime expected credit
losses on trade receivables. These lifetimes expected credit losses are estimated using
a provision matrix, which is presented below. The provision matrix has been developed
by making use of past default experience of debtors but also incorporates forward
looking information and general economic conditions of the industry as at the reporting
date,

The estimation techniques explained have been applied for the first time in the currem
financial period, as a result of the adoption of IFRS 9. Trade recelvables wers
previously impaired only when there was objective evidence that the asset was
impaired. The impairment was calculsted as the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of the expected future cash flows,

The company's historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different
loss patterns for different customer sepments. The provision for credit losses is
therefore based on past due status without disaggregating into further risk profiles, The
loss allowance provision is determined as follows:

2021 1021 2020 2020
Loss Loss
Cross carrying  allowance Gross  allowance
Amount (lifetime amouni ilifetime
At default ECL)  atdefauh ECL)
1000 1000 000 N000

Expected Credit Loss Rate:
Less than 30 days 330,198 1,510 802,472 24,374
31-90 days past due 15.762 10,088 26,774 3,718
91-180 days past due 33 8 7,932 2,012
181-363 days past due 1,385 357 6,739 1,710

More than 365 days pust due 458883 458883 464,619 464,619
806,171 470,846 1,308,536 495433

Reconciliation of Loss Allowances
The following table shows the movement in the loss allowance (lifetime expected credit
losses) for Trade receivables:

2021 2020

000 &' 000

Opening balance (495,433) (519,634)
Amount recovered 31431 13,756
Provisions charged/reversed on trade receivables __(6,844) 10,445
(470,846) (495,433)
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Exposure to currency risk

The net carrying amounts, in Nairs, of trade and other receivables, excluding non-
fimancial instruments, are denominated in Naira. The amounts have been presented in
Naoira by converting the foreign currency amount at the closing rate at the reporting

date,

Naira amount

Naira 3,245,255 5,008,244

Prepayments

Prepaid Import Duty 23,833 1,043,035

Advance Payment to Vendors 2,148,129 821,758

Others 213,898 180,034

2,655,860 2,044,827

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent consist of;

Cash on hand 5,708 4 660

Bank balances * 20,009,479 0,621,425

Short-term deposit ** 243,247 2,688,583

Expected credit loss (3.041) (1.263)
20,255,393 12,312,403

_————— e

Cash and cash equivalent is reconciled to the cash flow statement as follows:

Cash and cash equivalent 202553193 12,312,405
Bank overdrafi — (2 936.986)
20,255,393 9.355419

* Bank balance as a1 31 March, 2021 includes an amount of N 1.493 billion (2020:
NT.324 billion) representing the CBN mandatory deposit for foreign exchange bidding
t be held by CBN for a maximum of 14 days. These deposits bear no interest.

** Short term deposits represent temporary excess of liquidity invested in low-nisk
shor-term bank deposits with a maturity not exceeding 365 days. Included in the shor-
term deposits is unclaimed dividend returmed by the Company's Regtstrar in line with
the Securities and Exchange Commission directive.

There are no material difference between the fair value and the carrying amount of cash
and cash equivalent.




Barrowings 2021
Held ar amortised cost; 000
Secured
Bank loan * 60,484,793
Owerdraft ** -
b1, 484,793
Split between non-current nnd current portions:
Non-current liabilities 22,544,629
Current liabilities 17,940,164
60,484,793

Faoge 84

P
27000

53,336,988

2,936,986
58,293,974

26,770,433
31,523,541
58,293,974

* Bank loans and overdraft are secured by legal mortgage over company’s property,
plant and equipment, all assets’ debenture, and corporate guarantee of Pivot
Engineering Limited, The import finance facilities are secured by consignment of
shipping documents for the raw materinl and corporate guarantee of Pivol Engineering

Lirmined.

** Bank overdraft represents the First Bank of Nigeria Limited advised overdraft line
obtained to support working capital with an agreed interest rate of 9% per annum.

The fair value of current borrowings equals their carrying amount, as the impact of

discounting is not significant.

The carrving amounts and fair value of the non-current borrowings are as follow:

Carrving Carrving Fair Fair
mmount amount value value
021 020 1621 2020
&'000 B"000 A'000 a'Don

First Bank of Nigeria Limited-
Term Loan (i) [0,366,432 10665986 |0.366432 10665986

First Bank Nigeria Limited

{CBMN inmtervention Fund} (i) [ 25,000 166,666 123,000 166,606
Bank of Industry Limited (iii) 2,303,197 3,187,781 2,303,197 3187781
Fidelity Bank Plc RSSF (iv) 6,250,000 8230000 6250000 8250,000

Polaris Bank Limited RSSF (v) L500,000 4,500,000 3,500,000 _4.500.000
22,544,629 26,770,433 12 544629 26,770,433

First Bank of Nigeria Limited Term loan was obtained in January 2017 to case the
Company's cash flow, The facility has a restructured tenor of 6 vears (72 months),
quarterly repavment of principal and interest, and Interest rate of 9% per annum,

This represents First Bank of Nigeria Limited's Central Bank of Nigerin'Bank of
Industry Intervention Fund {lerm loan) of & 666,606,666, The loan has i lenor of
seven (7) years, and interest rate of 7% interest per annum  with effect from
January 2017, This is currently being covered in the same offer letier with (i)

above,
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The loan from Bank of Industry Limited (BOI) was granted to the Company to
finance the new Pasta Factory located at Sagamu. The loan has a restructured tenor
extended to February 2023, with 12 months moratorium on principal repayment
between January and December 2018, This facility is domiciled with Polaris Bank
Limited.

The Company obtained a loan of N10 billion from Fidelity Bank Ple, under the
Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) Real Sector Support Fund (RSS5F) Programme to
finance the Sagamu expansion project. The loan was released in two tranches. The
first tranche was granted in April, 2017 with original expected pavment date of
11th January, 2024 while the second tranche was granted in August, 2017 with
expected repayment date of 24th May, 2024. The loans have a tenor of seven (7)
vears each inclusive of two (2) years moratorium on principal repavment beginning
from the date of first disbursement. Interest rate on the loan is 9%,

A loan of M5 billion was obtained from Skye Bank Plc, under the Central Bank of
Nigeria (CBN) Real Sector Support Fund (RSSF) Programme to finance the
Sagemu expansion project. The loan was granted in October, 2017 with expected
repayment date of 10th October, 2024, The loans have a tenor of seven (T) vears
inclusive of two (2) years moratorium on principal repayment beginning from the
date of first disbursement. Interest rte on the loan is 9%.

The fair value of current borrowings equals their carrying amount, as the impact of
discounting is not significant and all the bank loans are performing.

Exposure to currency risk
The carrying amounts of borrowings is denominated in Naira. However, refer to
note 31 for financial instruments and financial risk management.

Mairn amount
Maira 6,484,793 53,336,989

Foreign currency per Naira
usD 8405 -

Exposure to interesi rate risk
Refer to note 31 for details of interest rate risk management for investments in
financial instruments and financial risk management.

Deferred tax 2021 2020
Deferred tax [fability 000 aC000
Property, plant and equipment (4.940,786) (4.690,918)

The deferred tmx assets and the deferred tax linbility refate to income tax in the same
jurisdiction, and the law allows net setilement. Therefore, they have been offset in the
statement of financial position as follows:
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Reconciliation of deferred tax asset/{liability)
2021 2020
NO00 *'000
At the beginning of the year (4,690,918) {4,574,689)
Taxable/ (deductible) temporary difference 249 868 (116,231}
(4,940,786 {4.690,918)
Trade and (iher Pavables
Finance instrumaents:
Trade pavables 1,651,147 2,338,789
Unclaimed dividend (13.1) 243,247 222,583
Accrued liabilities (13.2) 15118307 15,893,365
Deposit by customers 6,774,580 3,017,733
Pension and sundry taxes 12,160 14,653
23,790 44 1

21,487,123

The carrying amount of trade and other payables and accrued liabilities is considered
to be in line with their fair value at the reporting date.

The unclaimed dividend represents amount returned by the Company's Registrar in line
with the Securitics and Exchange Commisston directive that all unclaimed dividend in
the custody of the Registrars should be returned to the paying Company 12 months
after the date of approval of dividend a1 a general meeting.

Accrued liabilities represent contractual liabilities that relate respectively to expenses
that were incurred but not paid for at the year end

Exposure to Currency Risk

The net carrying amounts, in Naira, of trade and other payables, excluding non-
financial instruments, are denominated in the following currencies. The amounts have
been presented in Maira by converting the foreign currency amount &t the closing rate
at the reporting date.

021 2020
Naira amount I A 000
Maira 23,799 441 21,487.123
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Taxation

Income Tax Expense
Current

Corporate income tax
Education tnx

Deferred
Originating and reversing temporary differences

Current Tax Pavables

At ] April

Under provision in prior year
Charges for the vear

Payment during the year

2021
00

72,922

138,036
200,958

249, 863

Ty e

450,826

—_————c

629,253

200,938
830,213
(629,255}
200,958

Reconciliation of the Tax Expenses - Effective Tax Rate
Reconcilintion between accounting profit and tax expense

Accounting profit

Tax ut the applicable tax rate of 32% (2020:32%)
Tax effect of adjustments on tovable imcome;
Allowed income

Disallowed expenses

Retirement benefit paid

Minimwm 1ax

Balancing charge

Capital allowances

Effective Tax Rate

Share Capital

Authorised

8.000,000.000 ordinary shares of 50k each

Issued
7.930,197.658 ordinary shares of 50k cach

1,576,746

=

304,559

{ 10,058)
1,550,327

12,922
3,740

9
200,958

ey

13%

——

4,000,000

3,965,099
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2020
000

401,833

503,485

116,227

614971

L]

|

345,083
125771

974,339

629,253

1,270,234

406,475

1,278,921
(74,967
402,833

(1.509.777)
503,485

40%

———

4,000,000

3,965,099
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2021 2020
000 " (W)
Share premium 6,462,041 6,462,041
Revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of goods 109,594,730 80,450,397
Revenue by geographical location of customers:
The company disaggregates revenue from customers as follows:
Domestic (within Nigeria) 109,594,730 80,450,397
Export {outside Nigeria) N P
109,594,730 80,450,397

Segment Reporting

The Company's business operating segments are identified by three factories located at
Ikeja, Sagamu and Apapa. The lkeja segment manufactures Noodles; Sagamu segment
manufactures Pasta while Apapa segment manufactures Flour, Semo, Wheat meal,
Brown flour and Baker's delight flowr.

The chiel operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
accessing performance of the operating segments, is the Board of Directors.

The Board reviewed the Company's monthly financial and operational information in
order to assess its performance and allocate resources.

The chief operating decision maker assesses the performance based on operuting profits
for each operating segments. Below is the summary of the operations from the three
segments of the Company:

31 March, 2021 Apapa Ikeja  Sagamu Total

&' 000 w000 000 w'ooo
Revenue RS 018586 5492485 [9.083.659 109.594,730
Cost of sales (73,299.296) (4.698.673)(15.975,487) (93.973.456)
Gross profit 11,719,290 793812 3108171 15,621,274
Other trading and operating income 121,831 15,661 3,220 140,712
Selling and distribution expenses (4,312,518)  (271,199)  (959,633) (3.541,372)
Administrative expenses (20273700 _(121.845) _(423.350) (2.572.5635)
Orperating profit 5.501,233 416429 1,728,387 7,646,049
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31 March, 2020

Revene
Cost of sales
Grross profit

Other trading and operating income

Ikeja  Sagamu

E R

64,783,514 6,374,180 9,292,703
(36.297.538) (4,186,963) (6,104.036) (66,388, 559)
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Total
"M
80,450,397

B.485956 1,187,215 3,188,667

34,382

13,861 838
116,209

Seling and distribution expenses (3,319,553} (1,207,110) (1,508,888) (6,035,551)

Administrative expenses (1L330.915) _[(498.802) (615146} (2.444.863)
Operating profit 515,685 1,076,094  5.497,633
2021 2020
Cost of Sales ] "0
Cost of sales iv analysed by noture as follows:
Raw and packaging materials consumed 82,662,001 57,236,117
Emplovee costs 2,681,854 2,362,844
Depreciation 4,279,627 3,507,009
Plant maintenance and power cost 1,696,667 2,936,876
Factory rent and rates 155,197 139,511
Insurance 76,157 BO,653
Other monufacturing expenses 421,953 305,547
B3.971.456 66 588,5359
Oiher Operating Income
Sale of by-product 83,969 30,160
Bad debis recovered 31,431 -
Net gain on sale of property 10,268 -
Sundry income 15,044 B6.049
140,712 116,209
Operating profit before Tax
Operating profit for the vear is stated after charging the following, amongst others:
Audit fees*® 20,000 20,0000
Consulting and professional services 45,279 75377
Drirectons’ emolument 55,349 53,186
Emplovee costs 4,594 596 4,103,269
Lease expense 81,613 68,365
Finance cost 6,069,301 4,227,396
Depreciation and amortization 4,663,976 3 R84,048

* No non-audit service were provided by the auditors during the year.
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Operating Expenses by Nature

Page bl

The total of selling and distribution expenses, and administrative expenses, are analysed

by nature as follows:

2021
a0
Directors” fees and other emolument 55,349
Emplovees cost 1,857,393
Delivery expenses 2,628,353
Insurance 94,052
Audit fees 20,000
Consulting and other professionals fee 141,676
Subscriptions 119,241
Travelling and accommaodation expenses 373,99]
Entestminment 111,238
Lense expenses 81.613
Bank charges 141,329
Uniform expenses 132,888
Drivers’ expenses 52,543
Motor vehicle maintenance and running expenses 87,495
Depreciation and amortization 385,407
Other expenses 1,833,169
8115937
Selling and distribution expenses 5,543,372
Administrative expenses 2.572.565
5,115,937
Finance cost

Interest on barrowings and overdrafi 6,069,303

Police Trust Fund Levy

Profit for the year after taxation before levy 1,125,920

0.005% thereol 36

2020
000
53,186

1,687,240
1,554,878
94,147
20,000
244,374
127,355
377,054
103,420
68,363
87,590
116,646
48,676
94,677
177,039
3,023,769
B.450.416

6,035,317
2,445,099
8,480,416

4,227,396

===

650,525

=

i3

The Police Trust Fund Development levy represents the contribution of the company
1o the development of the Police Force. This is in compliance with the Nigeria Police
Trust Fund Act passed by National Assembly in April 2019 and signed into law by the
President on 24 lune, 2019, The levy represents 0.005% of the net profit afier company

income tax of the companies operating business in Nigeria.
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Emoluments of Chairman, Directors and Employees
2021 2020
N D00 04
Chairman and IMrectors emoluments
Fees:
Charrman 2. 680 1600
Dither directors 10,4040 11,651
13,080 13,251
Other Emoluments:
Chairman - -
Other directors 42 269 19,935
Total emoluments 55,349 53,186

Number of directors (excluding the Chairman) whose emoluments were within
certain ranges were:

Number Number
below N5, 000000 7 T
WS 000,000 = ™ 10,000,000 = .
N 10,000,001 and above 2 2

No director waived his'her right 1o receive emoluments,
Mo pension was paid 10 the existing and past directors
Mo compensation for loss of office was paid 10 any of the directors.

Emplovees

As at 1] March, 2021 the company had 832 permanent employees (2020: 819} Employes
benefits expense is made up of the following for all employees, excluding executive
directors:

2021 2020

&0 ML

Basic and other payroll costs 2,870,307 2,574,880
Pension contribution- employer 278,599 242 361
Bonus 83,118 80,049
Medical aid - company contributions 152,695 127,082
Furniture 240,455 209,847
Leave allowance 140,284 121,458
Crher short-term benefit £29.136 747,592
4,594,596 4,103,269

T -
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2021
L]
Total employees” costs charged as follows;

Direct employee costs 1,681,854
Indirect emplovee cost 1.912.742
4,594,596

Average number of persons employed during the year:
Num ber
Administration 72
Factory 436
Management 5
Sales and marketing Ll&
832

s

Page B2
2020
=000

2,362 844

1,740,425
4,103,269

Mumber
264

430

-

118
L1E)

The table shows the number of employees (excluding directors) whose eamings during the

vear fell within the ranges shown below:

Number
Below 1,000,000 294
1,000,001 = o 000,000 113
2,000, 06k =-3,000.000 83
3,000,001 = 4,000,000 38
4,000,001 = 5,000,000 24
5,000,001 - 6,000,000 29
6,000,001 and above 49
B2
Depreciation and amortisation 021
Depreciation: a'000
Operating expenses 350 554
Cost of sales 4279627
4,639,181
Amaortisation:

Intangible asseis 24,7935
4,663,976

Cash Now reconciliation of tax paid
Balance ot beginning of the year (629.255)

Current tax for the vear recognised in profit/loss  (430.618)
Prior year under provision .

Balance at end of the year 43061
(629.255)

Dividends paid

Dividends (317,208)

—_———_——=

MNomber

4492

ik

K4

36

20

29

A8

K19

1020
000
362,512
3,307,009
3,569,511

14527
3,584,048

(345,085)
(503,483)
(125,771)

629,255
(345,083)
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Financial Commitments

The Directors are of the opinion that all known liabilities and commitments have been
taken into-account in the preparation of the financial statements under review. These
liabilities are refevant in assessing the Company's state of affairs as at 31 March, 2021.

Contingencies
There are litigations against the Company as at 31 March, 2021 the outcome of which
had not been determined.

However, the directors, having sought legal advice from professional counsel are of the
opinion that no material ligbilities may arise in the ordinary course of business. No
provision was made in these financial statements in that respect.

Related Partics

The directors, their close family members and any employvee whao is able 1o exert a
significant influence on the operating policies of the Company are considered as related
parties. Key management personnel are also regarded as related parties, Key
management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly,
including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

Related Parties Transactions

The company eénters into transactions with some companies in which the chairman, Dr.
Oba Otudeko has significant interest (related parties) in the normal course of business
and at normal market prices.

The details of transactions and balances outstanding at the end of year are as follows:

Due from related parties

Muture of  Mature of  Openbng Transactbons Twial
Relationship Transaction balamces durhgth
‘ear

A0

M "M
Due from related parties
Ursge Real Estutes Lid Common Direclor  Borrowings 150,000 i1 500 8K -
Anchorage Leisure Lid Common Birectar Bamowings 574,357 (574,557) -
Honeywell CiF & Gas Lid  Common DMrector  Horrowings 296,058 (206.088) -
Urign Power Solution Lid  Common Director  Darrowings 449,664 (21.271) 428393
Uraga Power Solutlon Ltd  Common Director  Lease A dd6ies (ITHOSE] I33IR. 15T

4006474 (1. 219924) 1,786,550

Transactions with Key Management Personnel
The Company's key management personnel, and persons connected with them, are
also considered to be related parties for disclosure purposes.

No kev management personnel or their immediate relatives engaged in transactions
with the Company during the vear (2020: Nil)
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Significant Judgment and Kev Sources of Estimation

In preparing its financial statements, the Company has made significant judgments,
estimates and assumptions that impact on the carrying value of certain assets and
lishilities. income and expenses as well as other information reported in the notes. The
Company periodically monitors such estimates and assumptions and make sure that
they incorporate all relevant information available at the date when financial statements
are prepared. However, this does not prevent actual figures differing from estimates.

The judgments made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies that
have the most significam effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements,
and the estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and linbilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

Revenue recognition

The Company makes provisions for trade discounts. volume rebates and charge back
for product returns allowed by the sale contracts when recognizing the révenue derived
from sales of its products. Such deductions represent estimates, which are subject 1o
judgments and assumptions based on past experience as well as the company's
knowledge available at the time the estimate is made.

Allowance for doubtful receivables

The determination of the recoverability of the amount due from customers involves the
identification of whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. In cases where
that process is not feasible. a collective evaluation of impairment is performed. As a
consequence, the way individual and collective evaluations are carried out and the
timing relating to the identification of objective evidence of impairment require
significant judgment and may materially affect the carrying amount of receivables at
the reporting date,

Asset impairment tests

A financial asset or a group of financial nssets, other than those eategorized o fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period, Impairment exists only when the Company ascertains that & "loss
event” affecting the estimated future cash flows of the financial assel has occurred, [t
may not be possible to identify a single, discrete event that caused the impairment and
moreover 10 determine when a loss event has occurred might involve the exercise of
significant judgment.

The amount of impairment loss recognized for financial assets carried at amortized cost
is the difference between the assets’ camrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
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Mvel realizable value of inventorics

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, The cost of
nventories is written down to their estimated realizable value when their cost may no
longer be recoverable, such as when inventories are damaged or become wholly or
parily obsolete or their selling prices have declined. In any case, the realizable values
represent the best estimate of the recoverable amount, based on the most relinble
evidence available at the reporting date and inherently involve estimates regarding the
future expecied realizable value. The benchmarks for determining the ameunt of write-
downs 1o net realizable value include ageing analysis, technical assessment and

subszzquent events.

In general, such an evaluation process requires significant judgment and may materially
affect the carrying amount of inventories at the reporting date.

Deferred fax estimation

Recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities Involves making a series of
assumptions. As far as deferred tax assets are concerned, their realization ultimately
depends on taxable profits being available in the future. Deferred tax assets are
recognized only when it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the deferred tax asset can be utilized and it is probable that the entity will eam sufficient
taxable profit in fiure periods to benefit from a reduction in tax payments. This
involves the Company making assumptions within its overall tax-planning activities
and periodically reassessing them in order to reflect changed circumstances as well as
tax regulations. Moreover, the measurement of & deferred tax asset or liability reflects
the manner in which the entlty expects 1o recover the asset's carrying value or settle the
liahility,

Financial instruments and risk management
Capital risk management

The company’s objective when managing capital (which includes share capital,
borrowings, working capital and cash and cash equivalents) is 1o maintain a flexible
capital structure that reduces the cost of capital to an scceptable level of risk and to
safeguard the company's ability to continue as 8 going concern while taking advantage
of strategic opportunities in order to maximise stakeholder returns sustainably.

The company manages capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underiving assets. In order 1o
maintain the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to
the shareholders, issue new shares, issue new debt, issue new debt 1o replace existing
debt with different characteristics and/or sell assets to reduce debt.



Poge 66
The company monitors capital utifising 8 number of measures, including the gearing
ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net borrowings (total borrowings less cash)
divided by sharcholders' equity.

The capital structure and gearing ratio of the company ot the reporting date was as

follows:

. 2021 2020
w000 000

Borrowings 11 60,484,793 55,336,989
Trade and other pavables 13 23,790,441 21487121
Total borrowings 84,284,234 76,824,110
Cash and cash equivalents 10 (20255393} (9355419
Net borrowings 64,028,841 67,468,691
Equity 57968678 57,160,022
Gearing ratio 110 % 118 %

Financial risk management

Overview

The company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
o Credit risk:
o Liquidity risk; and
o  Market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk).

The board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the company's risk management [framework. The board has established the risk
committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the company's risk
management policies. The commitiee reports quarterly to the board of directors on its
activities.

The company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the
risks faced by the company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and o monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and svstems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company's activities.

The company audit commitiee oversees how management monitors compliance with
the risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the company. The audit
committee |5 assisted in its oversight role by intemal audit. Internal audit undertakes
both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results
of which are reported to the audit comminiee and the risk commitice.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 1o the company if a customer or counterparty 1o
a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The company s exposed
to credit risk on trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loan
commitments and financial guarantees.
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Credit risk for exposures other than those arising on cash and cash equivalents, are
managed by making use of credit approvals, limits and monttoring. The company only
deals with reputable counterpartics with consistent payment histories. Sufficient
collaternl or guarantees are slso obtained when necessary, Each counterparty s
anaivsed individoaily for creditworthiness before terms and conditions are offered. The
analysis involves making use of information submitted by the counterparties.
Counterparty credit limits are in place and are reviewed and approved by credit
management committees. The exposure to credit risk and the creditworthiness of
counterparties is continuously monitored.

Credit nsk exposure arising on cash and cash equivalents is managed by the company
through dealing with well-established financial institutions with high credit ratings.

Credit loss allowances for expected credit losses are recognised for all debt mstruments.
but excluding those measured at fair value through profit or loss. Credit loss allowances
are also recognised for loan commitments and financial gusrantee contracts.

In order to calculate credit loss allowances, management determine whether the loss
allowances should be calculated on a 12 month or on a lifetime expected credit loss
basis. This determination depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition. | there has been a significant increase in eredit
risk, then the loss allowance is calculated based on lifetime expected credit losses. If
not, then the loss allowance is based on 12 month expected credit losses, This
determination is made a1 the end of cach financial period. Thus the basis of the loss
allowance for u specific financial asset could change year on vear.

The maximum exposure (o credit risk is presented in the table below:

2021 i

Gross  Credit  Amortied Gross  Credit  amortised

Carrying laint conliTatr Carrylng lass  costfair

amouni allowance vilue  amount allowance walae

LR LR ERICH LR L L] ]

Trde & oither receivable K 1,716,000 (470.844) 3 24525% S5036T7 (493433 5008 T4
Cash & cash equivalenis 10 30.3%6.17] = 20Fa8E. 171 12314 668 = 12314 668
I9TLITY (AT0.848) 21,500,426 17815345 (495433) 17322912

e e e e =

Amounts are presented at amortised cost or fair value depending on the accounting
treatment of the item presented. The gross carrving amount for debt instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income is equal to the fair value because the credit
loss allowance does not reduce the carrving amount. The credit loss allowance is only
shown for disclosure purposes. Debt instruments ot fair value through profit or loss do
not include a loss allowance. The fair value is therefore equal to the gross carrying
amoint.

Liguidity risk

The company is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the company will
encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations as they become due,

The company manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital,
capital expenditure and cash flows. The financing requirements are met through a
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mixture of cash generated from operations and long and short term bomowings.
Committed borrowing facilities are available for meeting liquidity requirements and
deposits are held at banking institutions.

There have been no significant changes in the liquidity risk management policies and
processes since the prior reporting period.

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and
financial assets held to mitigate the risk, are presented in the following table. The cash
flows are undiscounted contractual amounts.

2021 Carryving
Amount
oo
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 11 22,544,629
Current linbilities
Trade and other payables 23,7049 441
Borrowings 11 37.940.164
(84,284.234)
2020
Mon-current liabilities
Bormrowings 11 26,770,433
Current labilities
Trade and other pavables I3 21487123
Borrowings 11 28.566,555
Bank overdraft 10 _2.956,.986
(79,781,097)

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following information presents the sensitivity of the company to an increase or
decrease in the respective currencies it is exposed to, The sensitivity rale is the rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally o key managemen: personnel and
represents manogement's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only cutstanding foreign currency
denominated amounts and adjusts their translation at the reporting date, No changes
were made to the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of the sensitivity

analysis compared to the previous reporting period.




Page 69

At March 31, 2021, if the dollar exchange rate had been 5.000% (2020: 5.000%) higher
or lower during the period, with all other variables held constant, profit or loss for the
year would have been M|,892,082,000 (2020: ®1,592,008,000) higher and W
1,892,082,000 (2020: W 1,592,098,000) lower.

Interest rate risk

Fluctuations in interest rates impact on the value of investments and financing activities,
giving rise o interest rate risk.

The debt of the company is comprised of different instruments, which bear interest at
either fixed or Noating interest rates. The ratio of fixed and floating rate instruments in
the loan portfolio is monitored and managed, by incurring either variable rate bank loans
or fixed rate bonds as necessary, Interest rate swaps are also used where appropriate, in
order w0 convert borrowings into either varinble or fixed, in order o manage the
composition of the ratlo. Interest rates on all borrowings compare favourably with those
rates available in the market,

The company policy with regards to financial assets is to invest cash at floating rates of
interest and 1o mantam cash reserves in short-term investments in order (0 maintain
liquidity, while also achieving a satisfactory retumn for shareholders,

There have been no significant changes in the interest rate risk management policies
and processes since the prior reporting period.

Interest rate profile

The interest rate profile of interest-bearing financial mstruments at the end of the
reporting period was as follows:

Imterest rate sensitivity nnalysis

The following sensitivity analysis has been prepared using a sensitivity rale which is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in inferest rates.
All other variables remain constant, The sensitivity analysis includes only financial
instruments exposed to interest rate risk which were recognised at the reporting date.
Mo changes were made to the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of the
sensitivity analysis compared 1o the previous reporting period.

At March 31, 2021, if the interest rate had been 5.000% per annum (2020 3.000%)
higher or lower during the period, with all other variables held constant, profit or loss
for the year would have been W53 360,000 (2020: W199.563,120) lower and
MS531.560,000 (2020: W 199,563,120) higher.

Operating Leases

The Company leases offices and warehouse facilities under operating leases, The leases
typically run for a period of one to three years, with an option to renew the lease at the
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end of the lease period. Lease rentals are paid upfront and included in prepayments,
which are amortised to the profit or loss over the life of the lease on a straight-line basis,
Lease rental charge in current vear amounted to MNE1LG613million (2020: M6B.363
millicen),

There were no lease commitments at the end of the year (2020; Nil),
(oing concern

The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources 1o continue in
operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly the financial statements have been
prepared on a going convern basis. The directors have satisfied themselves that the
company is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing
facilitics to meet its foresecable cash requirements. The directors sre not aware of any
new material changes thmt may adversely impact the company. The directors are also
not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory reguirements or
of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the company.

Events ufter the Heporting Period

Mo material transactions have occurred after the reporting period reguiring disclosure
in or adjustment to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2021.

Comparative figures
Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform 10 currentl year
presentation formal.

Approval of the Financial Statements
These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the company on

25 May, 2021.
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HONEYWELL FLOUR MILLS PLC

STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021

“Value added™ is the measure of wealth the group has created in its operations by “adding
value™ to the cost of products and services. The statement below summarises the total wealth
created and shows how it was shared by employvees and other parties who contributed to it
creation. Also set out below is the amount retained and re-invested in the company for the
replacement of assets and the further development of operations,

2021 2020
000 %o 000 Yo
Tumover 109,594,730 80,450,197
Other operating income 140,712 116,209
Bought - in materials and services;
=Foreign (87.283.630) (41,790,417}
-Local (5,547.191) (25.291,219)
Total Value Added 16,904,621 100 13,484,950 100
Value Distributed
To Pay Employees
Emplovees cost 4,594,59 27 4,103,269 30
To Pay Providers of Fund
Finance costs &,069,303 6 4,227 106 3l
To Pay Government
Income tax 200,958 2 503,483 4
Police Trust Fund Development levy 56 - i3 -

Retained for future expansion and wealth creéation:

Depreciation, amortization and impairments 4,663,976 28 3,884,048 30
Deferred tax 249 368 - 116,227 .
Retained camings 1,125,864 7 __630492 i
Total Value Distributed 16,904,621 10D 13,484,950 Liniy

——— - =

Value added represents the additional wealth which the company has been able to create by
its own and employees efforts.
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HONEYWELL FLOUR MILLS PLC
FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021

Statement of Financial Position

021 020 019 018 P11
Asspls " Ik At (B ] e " (k0N " (R
Mon-gurrent imsels 101457979 105369928 106,658,720 1032100623 100,118,393
Current assels 45936677 36891364 3J0EI3TIS 21624951 13033321
Total nssets 147304656 142,261,292 37472444 124835003 113,151,714
Linhilities
Maon-current liabilities 2TARS 415 31.461.351 38,515,524 40,236,041 34,498 ,35]
Current liabilities 61940563 53639919 40301619  JRI0O7ISRE  16318.604
Totnl linbilities B9, 425 0TH B5. 101,270 BORAIT 143 68,443 349 Gl 81T D4
Equity
Share capital 10427, 140 10,427,140 10427, 140 10,427,140 1,427,140
Reserves 32,115,506 32.905,177 2905177 32,221 429 3211559
Retained earnings 15425947 138327705  1L302.5934 13,743,005 9,791,929
Total equity STO68,678 570160021 56635301 56,391,664 52,334,665
Total equity &
limbilities 147,394,656 142,261,292 13747244 124,835,013 11A151.714

B
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Inoome
Revenue 109,594,730  RO450.397 T4.400 113 71,476,319 55,227,891
e —

Prafil before taaation 1,570,746 1,270,237 ET5.123 4,872,292 5469 833
Taxation (450,826) (629,712 (539.423) (445,314} i1 164,878}
Police trust fund dev. levy {56] (33 - .. -
Retained carnings/iloss)  1,125864 650,492 35,700 M:ﬁ.ﬂ'l_! 4,304,955
Per share data {kobo)
Earnings per share {Basic) 4.0 B.1% .45 58 54
et assats per share T30.99 12235 Ti4 711 G0
Dividend proposed per share 7 4 - [ &
Dividend paid per share 4 4 f i 5

===

——

=

Per share data are based on the number of issued and fully paid ordinary shares of
7.930,197,658 at the end of cach financial year, (2020: 7,930,197.658).




Share Capital History

Year

15491
1991
1942
1993
19094
| 995
2001

2008

2008

Authorised ("4,
Increase Cumulstive

[ R

40,000
160,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

10,000

1 01, 060
10,0600
10,000
10,000
0,000
210,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
4,000,000
4,000,000

Page 74

Issued and fully paid up (W"000)
Cumulative Consideration
d cashid M1 each
2 cushil &1 each
F | cashi &1 each
T, cashi &1 each
2 cashiif &1 each
50,000 cash/@ M| each
210,000 M| each
1,000,000 cashid %1 sach
16599 QUL & couuiiion of Hesey w=h Geporites Foosls Lasits]
1,000 Gog Share split of M 1o ND20
3,400 009 Bonus issme of 3 10 4 shares
3,045 009 Public issue & N8.50 each



